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Prof Sihawukele Ngubane

MESSAGE FROM 
THE CHAIRMAN

I am pleased to warmly welcome ANFASA 
members and guests to our 2024/25 Annual 
General Meeting. 20 years later ANFASA 
continues to develop a vibrant literary 
community by uplifting the status and profile 
of authors in the country and lobbying for the 
protection of their rights. This achievement is a 
testament to South African authors’ dedication 
and unity, who have come together to build a 
strong and supportive association despite the 
often-solitary nature of writing. It is essential 
to acknowledge that ANFASA’s survival for this 
long would not have been possible without the 
continued financial support from our funders 
and loyal members who constantly renew their 
membership annually without fail. We would 
also like to welcome our new members and 
hope that they will find value in becoming a 
part of this community and we urge all of you to 
reach out to the ANFASA office to seek direction 
in all your writing and publishing questions.

The ANFASA Board continues to oversee the 
organisation as a collective working board, 
and this has proven to be a much more 
effective strategy as shown in our 2024/25 
activity report.  Despite continued operations 
with minimal human resources due to limited 
funding for overhead costs, ANFASA has 
maintained high-quality outputs. This success 
is primarily attributed to our diligent national 
coordinator, Samukelisiwe Mfuphi and an 
efficient Admin Assistant, Queensor Ngatane 
as well as our different committees assembled 
to oversee different projects. In addition our 
dynamic board has taken on specific portfolios 
to ensure the organization’s smooth operation. 

I extend my heartfelt gratitude to each member 
for their unwavering support and commitment 
to ANFASA.

I am immensely proud to share ANFASA’s 
achievements in the past year. I want to 
highlight the relationships that have made it 
all possible: with the Norwegian Non-Fiction 
Writers and Translators Association (NFFO) in 
Oslo and the Department of Sport, Arts and 
Culture (DSAC). I thank them for their generosity 
in supporting ANFASA. We continue on working 
with the Norwegian Embassy to revive the AGSA 
grant for authors, which was put on hold to 
conduct an internal review on the impact and 
outputs of the project over the years. ANFASA 
continues to be housed at DALRO (Dramatic, 
Artistic, and Literary Rights Organisation) 
offices, all thanks to Lazarus Serobe. The 
DALRO Managing Director has generously 
supported ANFASA by providing office space 
and other facilities. This support has allowed 
ANFASA to concentrate its time and resources 
on its mandate of developing authors without 
worrying about monthly administrative costs, 
including rent, internet, etc. To Lazurus and his 
team, we are forever grateful. 

The Department of Sport, Arts, and Culture 
contracted with ANFASA in July 2023 to 
administer the DSAC Publishing Hub on its 
behalf.  The hub aims to develop and promote 
South African literature by supporting authors 
and revitalizing the publishing industry. in its 
third year we are happy to report that ANFASA 
has put systems in place to better applicant’s 
experiences when making their submissions. 
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P R O F  S I H A W U K E L E  N G U B A N E
Chairman of the Board

The DSAC Publishing Hub is a catalytic 
initiative which has created jobs for language 
experts, publishing opportunities for authors 
as well as support for publishing companies. 
It is important to note that this initiative 
is a collective effort of the dedicated core 
selection team representing the books 
and publishing industry’s top stakeholders 
comprising esteemed individuals such 
as Mr. Marcus Maphile from NLSA, Mr. 
Lufuno Ndlovu from PanSalb, Dr. Pateka 
Ntshuntshe-Matshaya from SALB, Ms 
Cathrine Mokoena from DSAC, and myself, 
Prof. Ngubane, representing ANFASA. I 
want to take this moment to express my 
heartfelt gratitude to the core team for their 
exceptional dedication and unwavering 
commitment to the DSAC Publishing Hub. 

An impressive collection of fifty-seven 
works, comprising of forty-three physical 
books, eight audiobooks, and six books 
converted to braille were produced to 
date. Notably, four Khoi and San books 
written in Khwedam, !Xuhnthali, and Nama 
were published to further emphasising 
the importance of linguistic and cultural 
preservation. 

Another important milestone project to 
highlight is the Power of Authors, which is 
a one-day international semiar. This year’s 
theme was on Reimagining Authorship in 
a Changing World. I would like to take this 
opportunity to thank all the board members 
for facilitating an engaging and insightful 
discussions throughout the seminar. A 
special thanks to our exceptional presenters, 
who delivered outstanding contributions 
and made this event a success. We would 
like to extend our sincere gratitude to all 
the speakers and contributors—Prof. Mary 
Lange, Dr. Shahieda Jansen, Bafedile Bopape, 
Lorato Trok, Lorraine Sithole, Nthabiseng 
Jafta, Ashraf Patel, Kevin Fitzgerald, Cynthia 
Jele, Prof. Siphiwo Mahala, Monde Mngoma, 
Griffin Shea, Sawela Langeni, and Sydney 
Maluleke for their invaluable insights and 

dedication, which made this seminar a 
resounding success. We look forward to 
hosting more thought-provoking discussions 
in the future.

ANFASA continues to serve its members 
through several online resources such 
as workshops and publications, which 
include booklets on how to turn your PhD 
Thesis into a book, APACT (ANFASA-PASA 
Agreement on Contract Terms). All these 
resources are available for free to members. 

As I conclude my report, I would like to 
express my deepest appreciation to our 
loyal members—your consistent support 
through annual renewals is the foundation 
of our association’s strength. ANFASA’s 
membership has demonstrated healthy 
and steady growth following the challenges 
posed by COVID-19. This positive trend is 
reflected in the interim treasurer’s upcoming 
annual report, which highlights a notable 
16% increase in membership from March 
2024 to March 2025. Together, united in 
purpose and voice, we can continue to build 
a thriving future for ANFASA.

A special acknowledgment goes to our 
dedicated Board, whose tireless efforts 
over the past two decades have been 
instrumental in sustaining and strengthening 
our organization. Their leadership ensures 
ANFASA remains a resilient force in our 
industry. Prof Keyan Tomaselli continues 
to head up the copyright committee and 
the ANFASA Magazine, working closely 
with Hetta Pieterse. I want to express my 
gratitude to you and all the contributors 
whose efforts make these committees 
successful each year. The Public Landing 
Right led by Mr. Sihle Khumalo remains a 
cornerstone campaign for ANFASA, and 
we are committed to ongoing research 
and consultations until we achieve a 
breakthrough.

I sincerely thank Ntate Winston Mohapi for 

stepping up as our interim treasurer during 
our transition and we are hopeful to have 
this position filled as soon as possible.

We also thank our Funders, the Norwegian 
Academic and Non-Fiction Writers and 
Translators Association (NFF) in Oslo, for 
their continued financial support. The 
Royal Norwegian Ministry of Foreign Affairs, 
through its Embassy in Pretoria. And to the 
Department of Sport, Arts, and Culture, we 
hope this partnership will grow in leaps and 
bounds. We will continue working together 
to produce new, rich literature in our South 
African official languages. 

In summary, I would like to thank the 
members of the Board, who have worked 
tirelessly and diligently to enhance the 
Organization. The ANFASA magazine is 
active, and it continues to publish exciting 
titles. I also wish to convey our sincere 
gratitude to our partners, the Norwegian 
Academic and Non-Fiction Writers and 
Translators Association (NFFO), for their 
continued financial support, especially our 
dear friend Mr Jorgen Lorentzen, now the 
current Director. We would also like to thank 
the international Authors Forum (IAF) for its 
continued support and ANFASA continues 
to be a proud member of IAF. Last but not 
least, all members of ANFASA for being there 
to support the Organisation by renewing 
their subscriptions and their loyalty to 
ANFASA.

Our main priority is to protect the rights of 
authors. Let us all keep writing books and 
take advantage of the opportunities that 
ANFASA provides its members. I wish you a 
prosperous year. 
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MESSAGE FROM
INTERIM TREASURER

Good day Ladies and Gentlemen. 

It is that time of the year when an ANFASA 
Annual Financial Statements is presented to 
the ANFASA members for the financial year 
ending 31st March 2025.

ANFASA is the acronym of Academic and 
Non-Fiction Authors’ Association of South 
Africa, came into existence in 2004 with a 
steadily growing membership as mentioned 
in the Chairman’s report. Over the past 
21 years ANFASA has had a clean financial 
report from the auditors

It is not easy for ANFASA to forget its 
former stalwart and dedicated leader 
Monica Seeber. Another committed Board 
member who was at the infancy of ANFASA 
is Professor Keyan Tomaselli. He has 
without failure made sure that the ANFASA 
magazine is available quarterly with minor 
expenditure.

ANFASA’s basic aim is to reinforce the 
organisation and to advocate for the 
interests and concerns of all authors, 
irrespective of whether their works have 

been published or not. The ANFASA 
constitution maintains adequate accounting 
of records and is responsible for the content 
and integrity of the financial statements. 
It is satisfying to realise that ANFASA 
has managed its finances professionally 
internally as verified by external auditing. 
All this happened since 1st April 2024 up to 
31st March 2025 because of the devotion of 
ANFASA management and administration to 
maintain adequate accounting responsible 
financial processes.

2025 financial standing has seen an 
improved and careful progress in 
expenditure and savings. The past year 
has been a busy one. The Department of 
Sport, Arts and Culture has again played a 
major role in the development of literature 
and focusing also on indigenous languages 
literature. The DSAC Publishing Hub has 
become the famous attraction for ANFASA in 
the country.

According to finances membership has 
improved to demonstrate the trust and 
confidence that old members have on 
ANFASA and the new members have 

been well recruited. The ANFASA Board 
still beseech each member to invite new 
members at institutions of higher education 
in particular.  

ANFASA still enjoys a favourable relationship 
with the Norwegian Non-Fiction Writers and 
Translators Association and for funding

The ANFASA National Coordinator, Ms 
Samukelisiwe Mfuphi and the assistant, Ms 
Queensor Ngatane are thanked for their 
financial flawless work. 

Last but not least, we should thank the 
ANFASA Board and the Chairman, Prof 
Sihawu Ngubane for his guidance through 
the past year.

Ke a leboha. 

A N F A S A ’ S  I N T E R I M 
T R E A S U R E R ’ S  R E P O R T 
F O R  T H E  E N D  O F  3 1 S T 
M A R C H  2 0 2 5 .



M
IS

SI
O

N

VI
SI

O
N

ANNUAL REPORT 2024|25 5

ABOUT ANFASA

ANFASA’s Vision is to be a member-driven 

association to uphold and enhance the profile 

and status of authors in South Africa, through 

advocating for the recognition of their works 

and protection of their rights, in collaboration 

and cooperation with other stakeholders 

in the book value chain such as publishers, 

booksellers and libraries.

ANFASA recognises that authors have the 

potential to influence society for the better, as 

expressed in the United Nations development 

goals of campaigning to end poverty, protecting 

the environment, and promoting peace and 

prosperity. Authors played a significant role in 

the South African struggle for democracy and 

showed that authors can have power. ANFASA’s 

overriding objective is to strengthen the voice 

of authors in the service of a democratic and 

egalitarian society.

ANFASA IS A NATIONAL ASSOCIATION ESPECIALLY FOR AUTHORS OF GENERAL NON-

FICTION WORKS, TEXTBOOKS AND ACADEMIC WORKS, BUT IT DOES NOT EXCLUDE 

AUTHORS OF FICTIONAL WORKS FROM MEMBERSHIP. MANY AUTHORS OF FICTION 

WRITE NON-FICTION AS WELL, AND VICE VERSA. ANFASA’S PROGRAMMES, AND ITS 

OBJECTIVES, APPLY BROADLY TO ALL AUTHORS. ANFASA IS DEDICATED TO DEFENDING 

THEIR INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS, TO PROMOTING THEIR WORKS AND TO 

SHARING INFORMATION AND OFFERING ADVICE AND EXPERTISE ON WRITING AND 

PUBLISHING. 

ANFASA’s Mission is to build a 

strong organisation to support 

and respond to authors’ needs 

and interests and to enable 

their agency in directing their 

personal development as 

creative workers. 

To inform authors of their 

intellectual property rights and 

ensure that they are properly 

remunerated for their work, and 

to maintain good relationships 

with rightsholder bodies and 

other sectoral stakeholders 

with the objective of advancing 

the growth of a writing and 

reading society.

To make a contribution 

to South African culture, 

heritage, economic and human 

development through the 

growth of a literate society, 

and to encourage and support 

written communication in the 

arts, sciences and humanities. 

To sponsor and encourage 

the writing and publication of 

new works especially those 

which tackle themes of striking 

relevance such as human 

rights, social and economic 

development and all aspects of 

the environment.



STRATEGIC 
PLAN
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OBJECTIVE CORRESPONDING PROGRAMMES

To build a strong organisation to support and 
uplift authors; to make available creative 
and income-generating opportunities; to 
contribute to the individual development 
of authors and to the development of 
authorship in the broader community.

Publicise and promote ANFASA throughout the 
country to attract more members especially in tertiary 
institutions and in rural areas; partner with sponsors to 
raise funds and allocate them to programmes aimed at 
the empowerment of authors and their role in the growth 
of the book sector.  

To raise the status of authors in society 
and ensure that they receive adequate 
recognition; to advocate for greater respect 
for their intellectual property rights; to 
advocate for better incomes thereby 
encouraging more writing.

Inform authors of their intellectual property rights; 
maintain good relationships with rightsholder bodies 
and other sectoral stakeholders; influence legislative 
development and play a leading role in the public debate 
on copyright; work with local and international bodies on 
schemes to benefit authors, such as Public Lending Right 
(PLR).

To attract and maintain members by 
servicing their needs, interests and 
requirements; to offer advice on writing 
and publishing, to offer skills development 
opportunities; to provide networking 
opportunities and to strengthen authors’ 
voice and role in the book value chain.

Develop, plan and organise events such as workshops, 
seminars and conferences; use surveys to assess how well 
members’ needs are being met; offer incentives such as 
grants to authors; develop communication channels (the 
ANFASA website. bulletins and newsletters) as ongoing 
sources of information; participate in book events such 
as book fairs; develop sound relationships with others in 
the book value chain – publishers, booksellers, librarians.

To contribute to South African culture and 
heritage, social, cultural and educational 
development, poverty alleviation and 
economic advancement by promoting 
and participating in the growth of a 
knowledgeable reading and writing society.

Sponsorship and encouragement of the writing and 
publication of new works; focus on writing by the 
previously marginalised; encouragement of academic 
and educational works to substitute for imported 
knowledge; promotion of the agency of authors as 
individual contributors to the creative economy; focus on 
developing a literature in the indigenous languages. 
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BOARD MEMBERS

is the Head of Teaching and Learning in the 
School of Arts at the University of KwaZulu-
Natal. He is an Onomastician and an author 
of educational and literary isiZulu books as 
well as the Chairperson of the Zulu Writers 

Guild.

is Distinguished Professor at the is 
Distinguished Professor at the University 
of Johannesburg, editor of Critical Arts:  
South-North Cultural and Media Studies 
and co-editor of Journal of African Cinemas.  
He is co-editor with Anthony Olorunnisola 
of Political Economy of Transformation: 
The South African Media. Hampton Press, 
2011. A member of the Academy of Science 
for South Africa, he is also Professor 
Emeritus and a Sometime Fellow at the 
University of KwaZulu-Natal, where he was 
for 29 years the Director of the Centre for 
Communication, Media and Society.

is a Commissioning Editor and Manager 
(Unisa Press) and has completed an MA 
in Information Science (UNISA). She is an 
Editorial Board Member of ANFASA (Non-
fiction Authors Association of South Africa). 
She holds an Honours Degree in English, 
a Teaching degree (UP), Fine Arts Diploma 
(UJ) and two Marketing Diplomas (Unisa: 
International Marketing & The Basics of 
Business). She has delivered and published 
conference papers, have co-authored 
and authored articles and book chapters.  
She practices fine arts as a printmaker, 
of monographs and artists’ books. She is 
involved in the Moot Community clean-up 
project series, where she regularly helps to 
design and paint large murals on bridges 
and walls in the Pretoria Moot region – 
apart from assisting with general cleaning 
up actions.

is an associate professor in Publishing 
Studies in the Department of Information 
Science at the University of Pretoria. 
Her research focuses on the history of 
books and publishing in South Africa and 
Africa more broadly. She is author of A 
Social History of the University Presses 
in Apartheid South Africa (Brill, 2016), 
A Survey of South African Crime Fiction 
(with Sam Naidu, UKZN Press, 2017), and 
Publishing Against Apartheid: A case study 
of Ravan Press (Cambridge University Press 
Elements, 2020). She is actively involved 
with publishing and author networks and 
coordinates the annual book industry 
survey for the Publishers’ Association of 
South Africa. Before becoming a full-time 
academic, she worked in the scholarly 

publishing industry in South Africa

is the co-founder and Chairman of 
MoabaSesotho: the Sesotho Writers’ 
Association. He is also the head of African 
languages Translation and Editing at the 
Department of Arts and Culture. He is one 
of the prolific Sesotho authors with two 
awards on drama and novel out of his more 
than twenty books. He is one of the long 

serving ANFASA Board member.

is South Africa’s award winning and 
bestselling author. He has written four 
books and contributed to two. His book, 
Almost Sleeping My Way to Timbuktu, 
won the 2014 South African Literary 
Award (creative non-fiction category). 
He was educated at Durban University 
of Technology as well as at Wits and 
Stellenbosch Business Schools. His next 
book will be published in September 2022.

ADMINISTRATION

Samukelisiwe Mfuphi
National Coordinator

Queensor Ngatane
Administrative Assistant

Professor Sihawukele 
Ngubane (Chairman)

Professor Keyan 
Tomaselli

Professor Beth 
le Roux

Hetta Pieterse

Tsietsi Winston 
Dennis Mohapi 

Sihle Khumalo
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ANFASA’S MEMBERSHIP STRATEGY IS TO ATTRACT AND MAINTAIN MEMBERS BY 
SERVICING THEIR NEEDS AND REQUIREMENTS AS FAR AS POSSIBLE.
THE ANFASA BOARD CONSIDERED THE FOLLOWING: 
	• What kind of members does ANFASA value most?

	• Do our membership priorities reflect changing social patterns? The larger the membership, the stronger 

the voice. Recruiting more (active) members is always the priority.

ANFASA is committed to streamlining the membership 

experience through ongoing improvements to our digital 

platforms. We now offer user-friendly online registration forms 

and a secure payment gateway, making it easier than ever for 

both new and returning members to join.

To support member retention, we’ve implemented automated 

renewal reminders, ensuring timely updates and uninterrupted 

benefits. Additionally, we’re encouraged by the growing number 

of members opting for Lifetime Memberships—a testament to 

their long-term trust and engagement with ANFASA. 

RECRUITMENT OF MEMBERS: 
ANFASA organises different events such as Conferences, Workshops, Seminar, ANFASA Grant Scheme as well as offer services that 

conform to members’ expectations these include:

•	 Access to publishing opportunities. 

•	 Access to writing workshops. 

•	 Legal assistance and copyright advice 

•	 Telephonic and email assistance with copyright and publishing queries

•	 Vetting of author-publisher contracts before signing

•	 Networking platform

•	 Access to the JSTOR research portal



Stats for 2024 Vs 2025
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We would like to extend our outmost gratitude to long standing members who always renew their 

membership annually and those who opted for lifetime membership option. 

We would like to emphasise that members should join ANFASA because they want to belong to a 

community of authors, that they know that as a collective we would have a much stronger voice to 

face ongoing challenges that threatens authors livelihoods. 

Membership fees for the past 10 years

The graph above shows the changes in membership fees over the 

past 10 years of ANFASA’s operation. The year 2015 recorded the 

highest income from membership fees at R38,373. This was followed 

by a decline from 2016 to 2018. No membership fees were recorded 

in 2020 and 2021 due to the impact of Covid-19.

Normal operations resumed in 2022 with fees amounting to 

R21,865. Membership fees then soared in 2023 to R34,484, with 

a slight increase compared to the previous year. This rise may be 

largely attributed to the launch of the DSAC Publishing Hub, as a 

notable increase in memberships was observed during May and 

June when the project launched.

However, in 2024, there was a sharp decline, with fees nose-diving 

to R15,510. The year 2025 saw a recovery, with fees rising again to 

R23,235.
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REPORTREPORT
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RI TALA NGA TSHANNGEGE
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ANFASA received support from the 

Department of Sport, Arts and Culture 

to administer the DSAC Publishing Hub 

project, an industry stimulus project 

to support authors and revitalise the 

publishing industry. Also, to encourage 

the creation of new literature telling our 

stories and preserving our heritage. This 

is essential for the department as part of 

its responsibilities to provide support for 

authors and the publishing industry to 

foster a dynamic literary community and 

sustain the creation of a wide range of 

significant literature including that written 

in the previously marginalised official 

languages.

An impressive collection of fifty-seven 

works, comprising of forty-three physical 

books, eight audiobooks, and six books 

converted to braille were produced to 

date. Notably, four Khoi and San books 

written in Khwedam, !Xuhnthali, and Nama 

were published to further emphasising 

the importance of linguistic and cultural 

preservation. 

ANFASA believes that supporting authors 

and publishing is crucial for nurturing a 

vibrant literary community and ensuring 

the continued production of diverse and 

meaningful literature. More especially 

supporting authors writing in indigenous 

languages is crucial for preserving cultural 

diversity, promoting linguistic heritage, 

and amplifying indigenous voices. 



Hi lo heleketana follows the life of Magwaza, who was born into a poor family and had to leave 
school due to financial difficulties. After dropping out, he found a job at the Thabazimbi gold 
mine, where he began a relationship with Mantwa, a mother of five. Years later, Magwaza fell 
seriously ill and was sent back home. Shortly after, he passed away, leaving Mantwa and her 
children the opportunity to claim his property.

Goodness Milambo
Goodness Milambo was born in Siyandhani village and now resides in Maphalle village. She began her education at Ris-
enga Primary School in Siyandhani and completed Grade 10 in 1998 at Famandha Secondary School. This is her second 
published book, showcasing her writing talent. Her first book, Swi ndzi pfunile yini?, was published with Writereadpub-
lish.

HI LO HELEKETANA

XITSONGA
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Heleketana

Hi Lo

Buku leyi yi vulavula hi Magwaza loyi a nga hlayisi vatswari 
kun’we na vamakwavo wa yena. Aa hlayisa wansati loyi a tshama na 
yena kwale Thambazimbi a tirha kona. Naswona wansati u n’wi 
kumile a ri na ntlhanu wa vana laha a nga fika a n’wi kurisela vona 
ku kondza va titirhela. Endzhaku ka nkarhi va vuye va n’wi hlongola 
hikwalaho ka vuvabyi a tlhelela ekaya laha a nga fika a lovela kona 
ivi Mantwa a n’wi tekela rifa ra yena. 

Goodness Milambo u tswariwile etikweni 
ra ka Siyandhani emutini wa Jerry 
Milambo kambe sweswi u kumeka eka 
Maphalle emutini wa ka Baloyi. Ndzi 
mutsari wa Hi lo heleketana. Ndzi tsarile 
buku leyi hi ku vona leswi vavanuna vo 
tala va yengisiwaka xiswona hi vavasati 
lava va hlanganaka na vona lomu ku 
fambeni laha eku heteleleni va vavanuna 
valava va kumekaka va hlongoriwa no 
tekeriwa swa vona loko vutomi byi bava.

GOODNESS MILAMBO

Ri Tala nga Tshanngege takes a deep look at how people often misunderstand life and the 
relationships we build with one another. Through a variety of poems, it highlights different ways 
of thinking about big topics like life and death, as well as the likes and dislikes shared between 
generations. The collection also touches on what helps or hinders true love. What’s great about 
these poems is that they offer advice and insight into the challenges we all face in life.

Mulamuleli Tshitangano
Mulamuleli Tshitangano, 22, is a successful author with a 
Diploma in Language Practice and French. She’s pub-
lished two acclaimed books and is currently pursuing an 
Advanced Diploma, earning international recognition.

Necodemus Mpho Tsedu
Mpho N. Tsedu grew up between Soweto and Tshisahulu. 
In high school, he discovered protest poetry and joined 
a Poetry Reading Club. While studying at the University 
of Venda, his passion for poetry deepened. After teach-
ing and lecturing in Venda, he moved to Gauteng before 
returning to Venda, where he now focuses on his two 
passions: facilitating training and writing poetry.

RI TALA NGA TSHANNGEGE

RRII  TTAALLAA  NNGGAA  TTSSHHAANNNNGGEEGGEE
MMPPHHOO  NNEECCOODDEEMMUUSS  WWAA  VVHHOO--TTSSEEḒḒUU  
MMUULLAAMMUULLEELLII  TTSSHHIIṰṰAANNGGAANNOO

Ri Tala Nga Tshanngege ndi bugu ya vhurendi vhune ha khou
bvukulula nḓila dzine vhathu vha ṱalutshedza ngadzo vhutshilo. Ri tshi
ḓa huṅwe vhathu vha ṱalutshedza hovhu vhutshilo nga nḓila yavhuḓi
na i si yavhuḓi. Ri dovha ra ṱanganywa na ṱhalutshedzo dza
vhushaka vhune ha vha hone vhukati ha vhathu u ya nga u
fhambana. Vhurendi vhu re ngomu buguni iyi vhu anḓadza khuḓano
dzine dza itea mihumbuloni ya vhathu. Oṱhe a kwamaho vhutshilo na
lufu, u funana na u vhengana, ndi ane vharendi vha tekesha.

TSHIVEND
ˆ

A
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TAU AHLAMA

In modern societies, certain things remain harmonious without the necessity for modifications or 
alterations; however, humankind unsettles these. This book unearths the challenges of ulwaluko 
(traditional male circumcision) as a direct consequence of distorting some cultural practices that 
should have been properly followed and that were used historically, which results in the death of 
initiates.

Sipho R. Kekezwa
Sipho Kekezwa is a four-time winner of the Maskew Miller Longman Literature Awards, a silver prize winner of the 
Sanlam Prize for Youth Literature Awards (2013), a winner of the South African Literary Awards (2021), and the Avbob 
Poetry Project (2022). He writes children’s books, drama, poetry, short stories, and young adult novels. This is his tenth 
book.

LIDE LIDALA LADA 
LALIMALA

LIDE LIDALA LADE LALIMALA

SIPHO R. KEKEZWA

USipho Kekezwa ukhulele kwezo zitalato zimgqubagqubane zakooC eZiphunzana
eMonti kwaye uyazingca ngoko. Ukuza kuthi ga ngoku uneembasa ezilishumi eziquka
ezine awazifumana kukhuphiswano olwalusaziwa njengeMaskew Miller Longman
Literature Awards, olwaziwa njengeSanlam Prize for Youth Literature Awards 2013,
izihlandlo ezithathu kolwaziwa njengeSouth African Literary Awards ngonyaka
wama2021 nowama2023 kunye nolwaziwa njengeAvbob Poetry Project ngowama2022.
Ngowama2022 wawongwa njengombhali wenNgowama2022 wawongwa njengombhali wenyanga kaTshazimpuzi ngabapapashi
bakhe, abakwaOxford Oxford University Press of South Africa. Ngaphandle kwezi,
usanda kuchongwa kwinqanaba leyona mbongi itshatsheleyo kunye nelembongi
yonyaka ngabakwa-African Print and Poetry Awards ngowama2024.
Lo mbhali uphuma izandla ubhala iincwadi zonoomngqushwana, imidlalo, amabali
amafutshane, imibongo kunye neenoveli. Inoveli yakhe yokuqala ukupapashwa
yapapashwa ngenkxasomali yeziko leThala leNcwadi yoMzantsi Afrika, iCentre for the
Book emBook emva kweminyaka eli16 wayibhalayo ingade ifumane ithuba lokupapashwa.
Ngaphandle kweqaqobana lamabali amafutshane awawapapasha kwimagazini iDrum
esengumbhali osakhasayo, uneqela lemibongo eshicilelwe kwiqonga elaziwa ngokuba
yiAvbob Poetry Project ukususela ngowama2019, owama2020, owama2021,
owama2023 nowama2024. Ilinge lakhe lokuqala kwimibongo lipapashwe kwingqokelela
yemibongo elikhulu ebhalwe likhulu leembongi ethi, 100 Echoes on Madiba’s Century
nekhahela kongasekhoyo uBawo uNelson Mandela, Aa Dalibhunga! ngokupapashwe
liZiko iNational LibliZiko iNational Library of South Africa.
Ukwangumququzeleli weentlanganiso zocweyo lwababhali, maxa wambi ngaphandle
kwentlawulo kubabhali abasakhasayo. Amalinge ababhali abane ababe yinxalenye
yentlanganiso yakhe yokuqalala elolu hlobo apapashwa kumqulu osihloko sithi, Cape
Town: Writing my City.
Le yincwadi yakhe yeshumi.
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“Merethetho ya dithothokiso” is a collection of poems from three authors that invites readers to 
explore their worlds. It has poetry that incorporates life’s struggles and triumphs. Its pages have 
the power to heal, provoke thoughts, and inspire.

Cally Maitse
Cally Maitse is a professional actress, 
theatre practitioner, and Sotho poet. 
She has trained at the Duma Ndlovu 
Academy for Acting, Actor Spaces, 
and CSP for poetry. In 2022, she 
graduated from the Market Theatre 
Laboratory’s full-time course and is 
continuing with her studies.

Teboho Josias Mahapa
A married father of three, Teboho 

Mahapa hails from Senekal in the 
Free State. Teboho started writing in 
primary school and published his first 
work in high school. He has written 
seven books and a drama for Lesedi 
FM. When he’s not writing, he is en-
joying a soccer match. 

Julia Mantsali Modise
In honor of her late father, Mohau 
Jacob Lepheane, Dr. Julia Mantsali 
Modise has collaborated with her 
siblings to publish Dithoko tsa Mohau 

Jacob Lepheane, part of the poetry 
collection Merethetho ya dikelet-
so - Pokello ya dithothokiso. This 
collection includes poems from their 
father, who wrote three unpublished 
manuscripts before his passing in 
1984. Their mother, Jeminah Seem-
isho Lepheane, also contributed 
to completing this work before her 
passing in 2002, allowing Dr. Modise 
to pay tribute to her father’s literary 
legacy.
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CALLY MAITSE , TEBOHO  MAHAPA, JULIA MANTSALI MODISE, PHD

SESOTHO
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The book Zwanḓa Zwa Malofha is a collection of short stories that exposes the horrendous 
acts that plague our communities. The stories encourage readers to think before they act, 
listen to the advice of others, and remember that justice always prevails.

Shakandinnyi Ramulifho
At just 33, Shakandinnyi Rodney Ramulifho hails from Mukula Village in Limpopo, Venda, and has already made a re-
markable mark as an author with an impressive 34 Tshivend

ˆ
a books to his name. His diverse works span novels, poetry, 

short story anthologies, children’s books, and educational materials for both primary and secondary schools, showcas-
ing his passion for storytelling and dedication to promoting the Tshivend

ˆ
a language.

ZWAND
ˆ

A ZWA MALOFHA

TSHIVEND
ˆ

A

Tau Ahlama is a collection of poems that encompass the culture of Africans, their traditions, 
ethics, their behaviours and grievances. It has solutions to the problems that South Africa is 
facing nowadays; it denounces criminal activities, hate and our disloyalty as people.

Magoja Humphrey Hlaka
Magoja Humphrey Hlaka hails from Gamolepo Gamankgatleng. He began his educational journey at Mothapo Primary 
School and continued at Tshebela High School. He later pursued his passion for teaching at Setotolwane College, where 
he earned a Secondary Teacher’s Diploma. Magoja also furthered his studies in Human Resource Management and Ad-
ministration at SBS WITS Campus. He is a dedicated teacher, an accomplished author, and is happily married to Dinah 
Hlaka, with whom he shares the joy of raising four children.

TAU AHLAMA

SEPEDI
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Set in Middleburg, the novel is about Lomkhosi Hleta, a ruthless lady of the night and 
McKnight, a shrewd businessman who for the love of money find themselves involved in 
bloodthirsty crimes of greed and murder. McKnight ends up dead in a hotel. Lomkhosi, 
the sole suspect in his murder, is jailed. Paroled out of jail, she plots the murder of a lover 
who wants the shares she has recovered from the McKnight Company where she had been 
double-bluffed.

Florence Longwe
Florence Longwe hails from the rural area of Engelsedraai Farm near Badplaas/EManzana in Mpumalanga Province. A 
talented writer and passionate reader, Florence is dedicated to showcasing her talent for words in her mother tongue, 
inspiring others with her love for writing and her resilience.

IMPHINDZISELO ‘REVENGE’

SISWATI

The residents of Ramakgetheng and Hlohlolwane are trying to solve the mystery of Nkgono 
Mantsopa. They have differing views on whether the Rain Queen, Nkgono Mantsopa, is 
indeed Mme Koena DiFule. Chief Sekonyela seeks to uncover the truth, but only God and the 
wise storyteller know the secret! Join the journey to unveil the truth, where culture, history, 
and mystery entwine. Discover the secrets hidden within the hearts of Ramakgetheng and 
Hlohlolwane.

Kagisho Kolwane
Kagisho Kolwane was born in Thabanchu. Her first book, titled Setswana Love Letter, is a collection of Setswana poems 
that includes short stories. She is currently running an after-school art and homework program in Thabanchu, Free 
State.

NKGONO MANTSOPA KE 
KOENA-DI-FULE

SESOTHO
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Bokang Bo Re Setse is a vibrant collection of Setswana poems that explores pressing issues, both 
past and present. This thought-provoking anthology embodies the rich tradition of Batswana 
poetry, where praises are sung before dawn breaks. This poetry book serves as a beacon to 
inspire our youth to cherish and take pride in the Setswana language.

Mosidi Pearl Joale
A passionate writer and poet, Mosidi Pearl Modise discovered a love for writing and reciting poems through various po-
ets and literature. After earning a teaching qualification from Strydom Teacher’s Training College, she taught at several 
primary schools in Thaba’Nchu and Botshabelo. She enjoys inspiring others through her poetry and encouraging a love 
for literature in students.

BOKANG BO RE SETSE

SETSWANA

Emphandwini Wezingonyama follows the story of a farmer with a large estate in Umthwalume, 
who, along with his family, was swept away during the 2022 floods. Mr. and Mrs. Ngcobo were 
found dead, but their daughter, Nokthula, was never recovered. As a result, someone had to 
take over the farm, sparking conflict within the family. Macaleni, the older brother, assumed 
control of the farm after his brother’s death. 

However, when shocking rumors about Nokthula begin to circulate, the fear of losing the farm 
throws Macaleni’s wife into a panic, triggering a desperate search to retain ownership.

Sbahle Mhlongo
S’bahle Mhlongo is a diploma graduate whose passion for writing began at a young age, starting in high school, where 
she often wrote in her diary. The 2022 floods inspired her to write her book titled Emphandweni Wezingonyama.

EMPHANDWENI 
WEZINGONYAMA

Endaweni yaseMthwalume KwaZulu-Natali, kwahlasela izikhukhula. 
Umndeni wakwaNgcobo owabe uneplazi elikhulu kwathiwa ushonile. 

Ngenxa yendaba yefa lakwaNgcobo, uMaGumede uzingela uNokuthula 
ufuna ukumbulala futhi uhlela ukwenza isenzo esibi kumashonisa ukuze 

athole imali. 
UNokuthula akaphathekile neze kahle ngamaphupho awatholayo 

nangendlela umndeni wakhe omfihlela kona okuthize kodwa akazi ukuthi 
uzokwenzenjani ukuze bamtshele iqiniso. Umndeni wakhe ungena 

engozini enkulu ngenxa yemfihlo manje uNokuthula ubona ukuthi indlela 
yokuziphindezela wukuthi aphakame abhekane nabazingeli bakhe ngqo 

ezinhlamvini zamehlo.

EKUGCINENI UBONA UKUTHI INDLELA YOKUZ-
IPHINDEZELA WUKUTHI ABHEKANE NEZINKINGA 

ZAKHE NGQO EZINHLAMVINI ZAMEHLO

US’bahle Mhlongo uneziqu zediploma, uthando 
lwakhe lokubhala lwaqala esemncane kakhulu, 
esafunda esikoleni samabanga aphezulu eNilgiri 
Sec School. Ubejwayele ukubhala ngayo yonke into 
ekwidayari yakhe. Ngesikhathi kuba nezikhukhula 
zango-2022, wagqugquzelwa ukuthi abhale 
incwadi ethi Emphandweni Wezingonyama.

ISIZULU
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Kwanele adores spending time with his wise and loving Gogo Andisa, who always shares 
stories full of heart and wisdom. But one day, Kwanele forgets a piece of her advice, leading 
him on an unexpected adventure where he learns just how magical listening can be. Along 
the way, he discovers the true meaning of love, the joy of paying attention, and the secret 
to hearing the world in a whole new way. Full of warmth and wonder, Elephant Ears is a 
delightful tale about growing up and never forgetting the wisdom of those who care for us 
the most.

Hidayatoela Adams
Hidayat Adams, an Educator from the vibrant city of Cape Town. He is the proud author of a fantasy novel and four 
short story anthologies, alongside a growing collection of poetry featured online and in the magazine Stanzas. This 
marks his debut in children’s literature, but he’s already hard at work on his next book. In addition, Hidayat is crafting 
his second fantasy novel and a thrilling paranormal story. He humorously describes himself as “an indoor plant,” reflect-
ing his love for quiet creativity.

ELEPHANT EARS
Hidayat Adams hails from the beautiful city 
of Cape Town. He is an English teacher, 
novelist and poet who has self-published 
one fantasy novel and four short stories 
anthologies. Hidayat has won a few short 
stories competitions, and a few his poems 
have been published online. He is currently 
writing a paranormal thriller as well as 
another children’s book. Hidayat describes 
himself as “an indoor plant” who thrives in his 
own company.

ENGLISH

Meetse A Mokgako is a groundbreaking collection of Sepedi short stories that expands the 
horizons of modern African literature. Rich in cultural depth, these captivating tales reflect on 
the human experience across generations, addressing the challenges faced by people today. 
Through vibrant characters and compelling narratives, the collection encourages readers to 
confront these issues with wisdom and resilience. Offering the “Thirst Quenching Water” of 
knowledge and insight, Meetse A Mokgako celebrates the relevance of Sepedi literature in 
contemporary storytelling.

Mosila Cacius Gafane
Hailing from Tlhabine, GaMogoboya, he started his journey into technology by studying Computer Engineering. He later 
pursued training in Basic Ambulance Assistance. With a passion for storytelling, he began writing in 2009 and has since 
published four books. His unique background adds depth to his writing, making each story a memorable experience

MEETSE A MOKGAKO
Mosila Gafane o belegwe ka ngwaga wa 1989, 
motsaneng wa Mosorong kua gaMogoboya. Yena ke 
ngwana wa mafelelo wa mohu Mahlare Pupson le 
mohu Mankwana Florah Gafane. O thomile dithuto 
tša praemare sekolong sa Mogoboya ka ngwaga wa 

Meetse a Mokgako ke kgoboketšo ya mathomo ya dikanegelo 
kopana tše di kgorometšago mellwane ya dingwalwa tša Afrika 
ya sebjalebjale.

E humile ka setšo sa go tsenelela, dikanegelo tše ga di goketše 
feela le go hlohleletša kgopolo eupša di fana ka go naganišiša 
ka go go tseneletšego ka phihlelelo ya batho. Kgoboketšo ye e 
akaretša meloko, e bolela ka ditlhotlo tše batho ba kopanago 
le tšona lefaseng la lehono, go tloga bosweng go fihla ba gola. 
Ka baanegwa ba mafolofolo le kanegelo ye e kgodišago, e 
hlohleletša babadi go lebeletšana le ditaba tše ka bohlale le 
go ithekga gape.  Ka go fana ka ‘’Meetse a go Tloša Lenyora’’ 
la tsebo le temogo, Meetse a Mokgako e swantšhetša kgato ye 
bohlokwa ya go iša dingwalo tša Sepedi pele, go keteka go 
swanela ga tšona le kgolo ya bohlokwa bja go anega dikanegelo 
tša  mehleng yeno.

1994, gomme a fetela Sekolongphagame sa Ramoba ka ngwaga wa 
2003 moo a phethilego mphato wa marematlou ka 2007.

Ka ngwaga wa 2008 o ile a yo dira dithuto tša Office Computing le 
Computer Engineering kua Arise Business College go la Venda, ka 
wona ngwaga wo a nama a ya go ithutela le thuto ya Occupational 
Health and Safety kua Mass Computer Training gona go la Venda. 
O ile a yo ithutela gape First Aid le Basic Ambulance Assistance kua 
Impact Academy go la Gauteng ka ngwaga wa 2010. Gabjale Gafane 
o dula motsaneng wa Leolo kua Tlhabine gona gaMogoboya.

M
eetse a m

okgako                                                                M
osila Gafane

SEPEDI
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In a world where betrayal, deceit, and hypocrisy lurk behind the warmest smiles, 
Menomasweu dives deep into the darkest corners of human nature. This haunting anthology 
unravels the chilling tales of gender-based violence, drug abuse, and the silent devastation 
of a global pandemic. Each short story reveals the thin veneer of trust that masks the true 
intentions of those closest to us.

Seakgwe Phalatse
Phalatse SS was born and raised in Makapanstad, where he began his education. An emerging Setswana novelist, he 
has already written three novels in the language, in addition to Menomasweu. He is currently a Setswana educator at 
Eletsa Secondary School

MENOMASWEU

SETSWANA

Xilonda xa le Nhompfini highlights issues of gender-based violence on vulnerable young girls 
who are sexually abused by the people who should be protecting them. This story follows an 
orphan called Mihloti who was raised by her uncle and aunt and the abuse she endures under 
their care. We observe the effects of this kind of abuse and how it affects even the lives of her 
children.

Musa Aubrey Baloyi
Born and bred in Limpopo, Musa Aubrey Baloyi is a published author who has won several awards in Xitsonga literature 
competitions, including the MML Teen Novel Literature Awards, the PanSALB Language Awards, and the Book Behind 
Awards in Indigenous Languages. He explores different genres in his writing.

XILONDZA XA LE 
NHOMPFIN

XILONDZA XA LE 
NHOMPFINI

Musa Aubrey Baloyi
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Loko Feleni na nuna wa yena Gumede va thya n’wana 
wa vona wa tuva vito ra Mihloti, a va swi tivi leswaku 
vito ri ta landzelela a khavaxela mihloti yi kala yi tata 
xidziva xa Ritavi. Ku hundza ka vona emisaveni swi 
siyile xiciwana xa vona erivaleni xi nela hi mpfula ya 
madambi na nhlomu wo ala ku hela. Na loko Feleni 
a nyika xileriso xa leswaku makwavo wakwe Falaza 
a sala a n’wi hlayisela n’wana wakwe, a ti byela ku 
ri swi tava hlangula mihloti leswi yena Falaza na 
nsati a va ri hava n’wana. Kasi n’wana u ta sala a 
phatluleriwa hi nghala ya ndlala endzeni ka khele.

Xikwembu a xi nyiki hi voko. Va tolo va tiyisile loko 
va ku mihloti u ta hlangula hi n’wana. Hambi leswi 

Mihloti a hlanganeke na swo vava loko a bebula vana vakwe, hi vona va nga � ka 
va n’wi lamulela eka lowa lunya na tihanyi a kondza a kuma ku rhula na ntsako 
emoyeni wa yena. Buku leyi ya XILONDZA XA LE NHOMPFINI yi dyondzisa 
leswaku hi tshembha munhu hi langutanile swi nga khathaleki ku ri i wa ngati 
hikuva vumunhu byi humile emunhwini, byi vunguriwile. Loko a ri munhu, 
tshembha loyi a nga endzeni ka sirha a nga ha vulavuleki. Yi hi dyondzisa hi lunya 
leri vana va swisiwana vo fana na va Mihloti va hlanganaka na rona emavokweni ma 
lava a va fanele va va sirhelela. Ematshan’wini yo va wondla va rivala na vusiwana, 
va va xanisa va tikiseleka emiehleketweni va kala va va vatswatsi va nga se kota no 
ti sula marhimila. Yi tsariwile hi Xitsonga xo hlantsweka no olova. 

Buku leyi yi tlhandlama tin’wana ta tibuku ta Musa Aubrey Baloyi loyi a velekiweke 
etikweni ra ka Mhinga hi lembe ra 1981 Mhawuri 06. Egondzweni rakwe ra vutsari, 
u tlhomiwile tinsiva eka mimphikizano yo hambana hi map� umba yo fana na 
Nationa Heritage Council SA, Limpopo Department of Sport Arts and Culture, 
PanSalb hambi ku ri va NLSA. 

Inkomu!

Maluks
Books

XITSONGA
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Misdaad/Liefdaad is a South African coming-of-age story. Eleven-year-old Lora’s world is 
turned upside down when burglars target their neighborhood and her sister, Tanya, goes to 
rehab. Determined to make a difference, Lora dreams up inventions to stop crime and restore 
broken toys for kids in need. As she navigates family struggles and new friendships, Lora 
discovers that small acts of kindness can have a big impact. Her journey of problem-solving, 
community support, and personal growth proves that even the youngest among us can 
change the world for the better.

Joanne Lombard
Joanne Lombard holds a BA (Hons) in English literature from Unisa and an MA from the University of Pretoria. A versa-
tile language practitioner, she has also explored her creative side as a painter, paste-up artist, and proofreader. With a 
deep love for Mpumalanga, she makes it a point to return to her roots whenever she can. In her downtime, you can find 
her swimming or hunting for treasures while thrifting.

MISDAAD/LIEFDAAD

MISDAAD/LIEFDAAD
Lora sien haarself as ’n oplosser van probleme en droom 
daarvan om eendag iets groots uit te vind. Een 
Saterdagmiddag maak sy onverwags ’n nuwe vriend en 
word sy betrek by die herstel van speelgoed en ’n baie 
spesiale pop, een wat kon praat. Die lewe is egter nie so 
maklik soos mens dit sou wou hê nie en Lora se geliefde 
huisgesin begin stadig meegee onder die druk van 
gebeure buite hul beheer. Lora moet ’n plan beraam om 
sterk te staan te midde van probleme wat mens nié so 
maklik kan oplos nie.

Joanne Lombard is ’n taalpraktisyn wat 
haar loopbaan begin het as grafiese 
ontwerper en uitlegkunstenaar. Sy is 
medeskrywer van skool- en 
kollegehandboeke en van haar kortverhale 
het in kinder- en vrouetydskrifte verskyn. 
Haar kunsopleiding het haar geleer om fyn 

waar te neem en dit is merkbaar in die beeldryke tonele in 
haar skryfwerk. As wêreldburger in gees vind sy inspirasie vir 
haar skryfwerk in verskeie tale en kulture en, insgelyks, 
merkwaardige mense en voorvalle uit vorige eras.

MISDAAD/ LIEFDAAD

JOANNE LOMBARD

AFRIKAANS

Intlungu Zobomi is a collection of poems that look at today’s way of living through the lens of 
nostalgia. It explores how modernization has overlooked old customs and shaped a new era 
for men. The writer pays tribute to those who faced life’s challenges without formal education, 
celebrating their resilience and strength.

Luvuyo Mzinjani
Luvuyo Mzinjani, born in Zithulele and grew up surrounded by the beauty of his hometown. In 2018, he made the move 
to Port Elizabeth to pursue his studies. A talented poet and writer, Luvuyo is also a Civil Engineer by profession. He is 
the author of several poetry books, including Yantshula Imbewu, Ukuchuma Komhlaba, and Ithunga Lengqiqo, each 
reflecting his passion for words and the world around him.

INTLUNGU ZOBOMI
Luvuyo Mzinjani

Luvuyo
 M

zinja
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Malunga nencwadi:  
Le ncwadi iqulethe uchungechunge lweemvumi ezijolise 
kwindlela yokuphila yanamhlanje, isebenzisa umkhumbuzo 
njengemixholo. Ijolise ekuboniseni ukuba ukuhlela kwethu 
kubaluleke kakhulu kumakhwenkwe, kwaye kucacisa ukuba 
ukugqwetha, okanye ukulahlekelwa ngumntu obalulekileyo 
ebomini, kudala imvakalelo yentlungu. 

Umbhali ubonisa ukuba ubomi bufuna ukungqubana 
kwaye uhonjiswa kwabafazi abanamandla abajongene 
nobomi kunye neengxaki zabo, nangona bengenazo 
imfundo esemthethweni. Iingxaki zobomi bobuqu zifaka 
phakathi indlela yokuzikhuthaza kunye nokuzimela 
njengemfanelo ebalulekileyo yokuphila, apho ukukhula 
nokuzazi kuyimfuneko ukuze kudlulelwa ebutsheni kuya 
ebudaleni.

Luvuyo Mzinjani
I�T�U�G� Z�B�M�ISIXHOSA

UTSOBE

AYIHLOME
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UTsobe is about a dedicated student who excels academically, but his parents are eager for 
him to get married. Concerned that he might fall into temptation and contract an illness, 
they suspect he is involved in a relationship. However, UTsobe is determined to prioritize his 
education and refuses to get married, fighting hard to complete his studies.

Sipho Themba Nkambule
Sipho Themba Nkambule, better known as Thiba. He was born on July 29, 1979, in Hendrina, Mpumalanga. Sipho 
started his education at Ekujabuleni Combined School in 1986 and completed his matric at Vumabesala High School in 
1998.

UTSOBE

U T s o b e

Sipho Themba Nkambule

UTsobe lisokana ebelithanda ifundo 
khulu, kodwana abantu abanengi 
bebangamthandi badlumbana 
bona ngubhayi ngombana amngani 
wabentazana. Nababelethi bakhe 
bebamsola ngezinto abazizwa 
zikhulunywa ngaye. Amasokana 
amanengi bekamhloye khulu. 
Ekugcineni wabatjengisa bonyana 
umumuntu onjani, waphumelela 
emfundweni zakhe.
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Sipho Themba Nkambule
UTSOBEISINDEBELE

Ayihlome is a poetic anthology compiled by sixteen men and women dedicated to building 
social fiber. It features a collection of poetic words of wisdom, covering various themes, 
including love, education, family dynamics, and social cohesion. The anthology aims to foster 
an understanding of oneself as an individual in relation to society and the world. The title, 
Ayihlome, connotes the idea of fighting—not in a physical sense, but as a spiritual battle 
against the social ills ravaging our social structures.

Armstrong Nkosenhle Zibani is a teacher by profession. He hails from Northern Zululand in KwaZulu-Natal, where he 
learned sculpting while herding livestock. The sculpting skills he developed through creating objects from wood and clay 
led him to explore creative expression through literary works. As an individual and in collaboration with both upcoming 
and seasoned authors, Armstrong has produced several notable literary works. In his project AYIHLOME, he worked 
alongside Dr. Themba Qwabe and collaborated with a diverse group of men and women, both young and old, as well as 
new and established authors.

AYIHLOME

ISIZULU

•	 Armstrong Nkosenhle Zibani
•	 Johannes Banda
•	 Rodney Bengu
•	 Musawenkosi Jokana

•	 Nomkelemane Langa
•	 Dunford Majozi
•	 Nomthandazo Masondo
•	 Phiwe Mhlongo

•	 Nontokozo   Miya
•	 Sifiso Mkhize
•	 Khayelihle Mnguni
•	 Olwethu Ngwenya

•	 Mbongeni Nzimande
•	 Thembinkosi Qwabe
•	 Fisokuhle Zulu
•	 Lungile Zwane

Themba Qwabe & Nkosenhle Zibani and Others
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UMKARISOMRARO” is an isiNdebele drama that tells the story of King Mahlangu, specifically 
Ikosi uSquthulu iDube likaMaphepha. The king is plagued by a terrible dream in which his late 
grandfather raises concerns about childlessness. This prompts the king to seek both modern 
and traditional solutions for infertility in one of the royal houses. The book also warns against 
unqualified doctors, pastors, and traditional healers who exploit people for money.

Sphiwe Mokoneng
Sphiwe Mokoneng is making waves with his captivating storytelling from Hlogotlou, near Monsterlus in Limpopo. He 
is studying language teaching at the UNISA. His writing blends emotion and insight, creating narratives that deeply 
resonate with readers. He explores human relationships and culture in his work and is becoming a notable author in 
isiNdebele literature.

UMKARISOMRARO
Maluks
Books

Umkarisomraro..!

Sphiwe Mokoneng

Maluks
Books

U
m
karisom

raro..!
Sphiw

e M
okoneng

Umdlalo lo othweswe isihloko esithi ‘UMKARISOMRARO’ umayelana 
neqhegu uMahlangu. UMahlangu uqalene nomraro wokutshwenywa 
libhudango. Ebhudangwena, ubona ubamkhulwakhe owalalako. 
Ubamkhulu ukatelela uMahlangu bona aluke amano asize omunye 
wamadodana wakwaMahlangu bona afumane umntwana. Uthi bewazi 
ngeendlela nanzi zesikhuwa ezisiza bona umuntu akghone ukuba 
nabantwana? I-in vitro fertilization kanye ne-surrogacy? Uthi bewazi 
ngendlela yesintu yomhlobo weSepedi? I-Hlatswa dirope? Uthi bewazi 
ngeendlela zesintu zesikhethu isiNdebele? Koke kumunyethwe yincwadi 
le. UMahlangu simbona alinga ngazo zoke iindlela ukulinga ukurarulula 
umraro. Nakhu ephasini lagadesi sele kuzele imikhwenende. Nakunjalo 

kghani uzakuphetha ayifumene ipengu? Nofana umlilo wesikhotha ubhebhedlhile? Vula naku umphako 
welwazi. Udle bewusele nomhluzi walo. Igadango lakho lokufunda okunengi ngephasi lithoma lapha!   

Ubuphetjhani buka-Eva Lema Mokoneng, uNaMasilela kanye noMnyamane Elias Mokoneng, iNyathi 
lakoMsweswe. Wabelethelwa e-Glen Cowie mhla amalanga ama-31 kuSewula ngomnyaka ka-2004. 
Wakhulela endaweni ye-Perderplaas, e-Hlogotlou eseduze neMonsterlus esifundeni se-Limpopo. 
Imithombo yefunda adlula kiyo, wafunda esikolweni samabanga aphasi i-Kawusime Primary School. 
Waragela phambili neemfundo zakhe zamabanga aphakemeko e-Mphezulu High/Secondary School. 
Emnyakeni lo ka-2024 uragela phambili ngeemfundo zakhe ezikweni eliphakemeko lefundo ngeYunivesithi 
yeSewula Afrika (i-UNISA). Ufundela iziqu zobutitjhere. Leli ikghono lakhe lokutlola lathoma ukubonakala 
ngomnyaka ka-2021. 

Ikhambo lakhe kezemitlolo:
• Utjhugulule imitlolo, ayisusa elimini lesiNgisi ayisa elimini lesiNdebele ephrojek’thini ye-Early 

Childhood Development Educational Materials emnyakeni ka-2023.
• Ephaliswaneni lemitlolo yeendatjana (ye-Best Provincial Literacy Awards in the isiNdebele Category 

2023/2024) uphume ubujamo besithathu.
• Umhloli weencwadi zesiNdebele, ikghono lakhe lokuhlola ulitjengise lokh anakahlola incwadi 

yesihloko esithi “UNJENGABO”.

ISINDEBELE

“Kube Bengati” is a gripping tale of greed and family betrayal set in Mbombela. When 
Jeremiah Siboshwa Magagula’s wealth becomes the target of tricksters and deceitful relatives, 
his life and the lives of those around him are threatened, tearing the Magagula family apart 
as the consequences of their actions become deadly. This drama explores the darker side of 
human nature within the family. Will the truth be revealed, and justice served, or will the lure 
of wealth destroy them all?

Nuku Dan Magagula
Nuku D Magagula, The Novelist, is a rising literary talent with a passion for storytelling and a drive to make his mark on 
the world of literature. Ambitious and dedicated, he is actively involved in writing short stories, novels, and drama. His 
debut book, “Resilience: My Burden Was Heavier,” was published in 2021 to great acclaim. His upcoming second book, 
“Kube Bengati,” promises to be just as captivating. His ultimate goal is to bring his stories to life on the big screen.

KUBE BENGATI

Umcabango wekutisola uyefika kunembeza wemuntfu
nakakhetse bugwegwe ngebulima. Ngalokuvamile, umbhali utsi 

sibantfu sivame kutisola uma tintfo tingasihambeli kahle. Bese sitsi 
kube bengati ngabe angikwenti loku kanje. Lomdlalo khombisa 

umndeni lonjingile wakaMagagula eMbombela ngaseWhite River.
Umdlali lomkhulu nguJeremiah Magagula lonemali. Uyawusita

umphakatsi kodvwa bakhona labafuna imali yakhe ngebugebengu.umphakatsi kodvwa bakhona labafuna imali yakhe ngebugebengu.

Uyotfola kamuva kutsi letigebengu tisebenta nendvodzakati yakhe 
lekufute kutsi ngabe isesikolweni eMpumalanga University. 

Sayitjeni Ngomane nguye umseshi losebenta nemaphoyisa
kubamba tigebengu. Tifuna imali tona natitfumba

umndeni waMagagula kodvwa emaphoyisa acebisa kutsi
ingaphumi imali nakuba letigebengu titsi tiyababulala
labatfunjiwe uma tingayitfoli imali letiyibitile. Imphilolabatfunjiwe uma tingayitfoli imali letiyibitile. Imphilo

yabo-ke manje isengcupheni, bangafa uma imali ingefiki.

Kube Bengati
Idrama YesiSwati

Kube Bengati
Idrama YesiSwati

Nuku D. Magagula

KUBE BENGATI  |  IDRAM
A YESISW

ATI  |  NUKU D. M
AGAGULA

�                    

SISWATI
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!XUHN THALI | KHWEDAM | NAMA
MULTILINGUAL CHILDREN’S BOOK

DANTAGOS 

Book description

This book is about the 
little girl called Dantagos. 
She is interested in the 
heritage and culture 
of the Khoe and San 
people. This book is 
suitable for children , but 
it can be used by adults 
who want to learn the 
Khoe and San languages.

ǂKhanis di xoaǂnamis

Nē ǂkhanis ge Dantagos 
timî ra ǀonǂgaihe 
ǀgôaros xa ra !gû. ǁÎs 
ge Khoen tsî San di 
ǀumîs tsî !hao!nâsib ai a 
dūraxa. Nē ǂkhanis ge 
ǀgôan !aroma hâ, xawe 
kaikhoen hîa khoen 
tsî San di gowaga ra 
ǁkhāǁkhāsen ǂgaon xas 
tsina a sîsenūhe ǁkha.

ǂXanu ǁ’ang nǁang-asi

ǂXanu hi ing a u-a tci 
dema ya ing sihng a 
tcuuhn-a Dantagos .

Ya txoi ta ǁoe  ke tu Khoe 
he ke San ǁ’an hi tci 
!uuhn he ke hi kulimatci .

ǂXanu hi ing wa hi 
ǁauhǁauh-a tci ǀxoah ke 
khoe he ke San thalising ,

Hi wa deve ǂxanu ta 
sihng tane a ǁauhǁauh-a 
nǂava hi ke tci ǁehǁeh hi 
ing ha tu ng nǂaih Khoe 
he ke San thali

THAM CI YAM Ô HE

Nǀi tham he kuate 
ǁgēǀoâ ci ,ǂ’i te he 
Dantangos.

Xahe Khoe nu San coto 
â nu kx’e kuri kx’ui â ta 
nǀama hi.

Nǀi tham he ǁhaiya te  
khwena â Khoe nu San 
damdji â. 

Tham he ǀoâ di , tamaxa 
takhwena â ǁacenca 
kyat e na âKhoe nu San 
damdji â 
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ANFASA hosted a one-day Virtual International Conference on the Power 
of Authors. The conference was aimed at re-evaluating the contributions 
made by authors through the ages and re-examining the meaning of 
authorship and how it can be given its due weight and recognition. The 
theme for 2024/25 was:  Reimagining Authorship in a Changing World

Throughout history the author has played the voice of opposition; a 
source of information, entertainment and wisdom; a record keeper for oral 
histories of various cultures and a creator of knowledge. Authors have been 
the bridge to society, and they have existed since ancient times. Authors 
have the power through their words to educate, heal and illuminate the 
mind.

The 4th Annual Power of Authors Symposium looked at – amongst other 
things - how writers, in the era of AI and given the current socio-economic 
including technological advances, re-invent and repackage themselves and 
their craft. 

The one-day symposium featured four sessions, each session was designed 
to explore the role of authors in society, their contributions, and how they 
can adapt to modern challenges while continuing to heal, transform, and 
inspire.
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Session Overview:
Facilitated by Winston Mohapi, session one explored how authors have confronted trauma, 

conflict, and societal challenges through their works. Discussions highlighted historical case 

studies of authors who inspired change during difficult times. Key questions included the 

responsibility of authors in fostering empathy and understanding. Panellists included Prof. 

Mary Lange, Dr. Shahieda Jansen, Bafedile Bopape, and Lorato Trok.

Led by Hetta Pieterse, this session addressed how authors can adapt to the digital landscape 

dominated by social media. Strategies for engaging younger, predominantly online audiences 

were discussed, along with the impact of AI and multimedia platforms on authorship. 

Speakers included Lorraine Sithole, Nthabiseng Jafta, Ashraf Patel, and Kevin Fitzgerald.

Prof. Beth le Roux, led session three which focused on the critical importance of copyright 

in safeguarding authors’ intellectual property and ensuring fair compensation. It covered 

common issues such as copyright infringement and provided practical strategies for 

monetizing literary work. Key inquiries included effective protection measures for digital 

work and sustainable business models for authors. Panellists included Cynthia Jele, Dr. 

Siphiwo Mahala, and Monde Mngoma.

Sihle Khumalo, in this session together with panel members examined the challenges authors 

face in an increasingly digital market. Innovative marketing and publishing strategies were 

discussed alongside potential collaborations with publishers and creative industries. Key 

questions focused on making authors’ works accessible to younger generations and building 

sustainable careers. Speakers included Griffin Shea, Sawela Langeni, and Sydney Maluleke.

ANFASA



ANFASA
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Authors must be 
rewarded for their 
hard labour — 
their intellectual 
contributions enrich 
our libraries, shape our 
culture, and deserve 
fair compensation 
through systems like 
Public Lending Right 
(PLR).

PUBLIC LENDING RIGHT (PLR) 
REPORT

Academic and Non-fiction Authors Association of South Africa (ANFASA) 
continues to be a trailblazer in author empowerment.  

One of the key projects that ANFASA has embarked on is the establishment and 
the implementation of a sustainable Public Lending Right (PLR) scheme in South 
Africa. 

Here is the context

Firstly, according to PLR International which is a body that ‘brings together 
countries with PLR systems to facilitate the exchange of best practice’ Public 
Lending Right (PLR) is “the legal right that authors have to receive payment from 
governments to compensate them for the free lending out of their books by 
public and other libraries.”

ANFASA, after an effective and efficient stakeholder engagement process, 
decided on creating a robust PLR Framework with more focus on indigenous 
languages which, mostly, tend to be side-lined and or ignored. 

That framework has been presented and, in principle, adopted by different 
stakeholders. 

One question that has consistently come up is “where will the money to pay all 
these authors come from?”

Government, therefore, has a crucial and central role to play in the successful 
implementation and sustenance of a PLR system. 

National Government - specifically the Department of Sports, Arts and Culture 
(DSAC) - is currently reviewing the Book Policy. It has become very important that 
we actively take part in that process.  To that end, the Senior Management team 
within the Department has been engaged and a submission was made for the 
inclusion of exploring the implementation of a PLR system in South Africa. 

The process is still unfolding, and the revised Book Policy (which will hopefully 
include PLR) has not been finalised.  

We do not anticipate that government will, in principle, argue against a very 
noble cause:  authors must be rewarded for their hard labour.

One of the key learnings from the 2023 PLR International conference which was 
held in Brussels, Belgium was that a sustained and successful PLR system must 
be protected by the legal framework. That explains why most countries that have 
successfully implemented PLR tend to have embedded it as part of the Copyright 
Act. And ideally, and that is what other countries have done, have a standalone 



ANNUAL REPORT 2024|25 29

Public Lending Right (PLR) Act.  

Within the SA context, from a legal framework perspective, there is a still a long way to go. The Copyright 
Amendment Bill has been fiercely opposed by the creatives, and ANFASA has been part of this legal 
journey. In December 2024, the President of the country took an unusual step, instead of either signing 
the Bill into law or sending back to Parliament; he referred Bill to the Constitutional Court. 

Finally, one of the ‘findings’ during the earlier part of the stakeholder engagement plan was the discovery 
that a sizeable percentage of authors had never ever heard about PLR. And almost all members of the 
general public had also never heard about the PLR system. 

Ideally; one of the key initiatives, especially in the short term, will be advocating, promoting and the 
raising PLR awareness amongst the general public on a nationwide scale. This initiative would need to be 
funded.

It has been obvious in the recent past, and this was also experienced during the course of this financial 
year, that 

•	 Without the buy-in and support from the government, it is almost impossible to implement PLR

•	 The implementation of Public Lending Right (PLR) system, due the nature of processes involved, is a 
long-term initiative. 

•	 A purpose-built legal framework is the most efficacious way that ensures the successful 
implementation and sustainability of the scheme. 

ANFASA - as an organisation – continues to empower authors. This reflected in our mission statement “… 
authors of their intellectual property rights and ensure that they are properly remunerated for their work 
…”

Our key focus – in the short term – is:

•	 Inclusion of the PLR system in the updated Book Policy 

•	 More robust engagement with stakeholders, especially government 

•	 Nationwide advocacy program

•	 Continuous assessment and engagement in international best practice consultations / exchanges 

S I H L E  K H U M A L O
 PLR Coordinator
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Keyan Gray Tomaselli

The copyright committee focuses on monitoring the progress 
of impending copyright legislation, preparing the response to 
new drafts of the Copyright Amendment Bill, lobbying, writing 
articles, and keeping members informed. Members’ requests for 
copyright guidance are also part of the group’s activities.

The copyright committee serves two functions the first is 
to research and monitor local, regional, and international 
developments in copyright law and practice in order to provide 
members (and all authors) with sound advice regarding their 
work and their contracts with publishers. This is a service 
offered to ANFASA members on their specific queries, offered by 
copyright lawyer Owen Dean. ANFASA has already established 
itself as a center of excellence in copyright matters, and ongoing 
research is therefore essential. 

The second function is to support ANFASA’s long-running 
campaign as an ally of the Coalition for Effective Copyright for 
revisions to the Copyright Amendment Bill, now passed by 
Parliament, but referred by the President to the Constitutional 
Court to consider very extensive recommendations made by the 
Coalition.   In this work, the committee is supported pro-bono by 
a number of local and international copyright lawyers. Numerous 
articles and studies by committee members have been published 
in the digital media, and also in scholarly journals.

Copyright and 
Legislature 
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1
ACADEMIC AND NON-FICTION AUTHORS’ ASSOCIATION OF SOUTH AFRICA

 ANFASA Volume 8, Issue 1 (2024)

EDITORIAL TEAM

Keyan G. Tomaselli (Co-Editor)
keyant@uj.ac.za
Hetta Pieterse

CONTRIBUTORS
Hetta Pieterse 
David Robbins
Keyan G Tomaselli
Duduzile Zwane

DESIGN, LAYOUT & 
PRODUCTION
Mike Maxwell  
mik_max2@hotmail.co.uk

“ ... what I want to 
highlight is related 
to the reason why 
the title of the 
book is Masculinity 
meets Humanity. 
It points to the 
key, and probably 
the root of it all, 
the problem of 
psychology as a 
settler discipline.”

Contents

Beyond the Book: An Interview 
with Dr Shahieda Jansen 
Hetta Pieterse.............................1

Entrepreneurially-based 
Community Libraries on the 
Rise in South Africa 
David Robbins ...........................7

Tickling the Ivories: Writing  for 
Accessibility 
Keyan Tomaselli ...................... 11

ANFASA Authors' Bibliography 
Compiled by Duduzile Zwane .....  
...................................................13

The opinions of the authors are 
their own and do not represent 

the views of ANFASA or the 
editorial team

continued on page 2:

I started shaping written interviews with 
authors to get them to foreground their new 
book content – where in some cases, we are 

struggling to get sufficient marketing coverage 
and reviews. The below set of questions was 
shaped for this reason. The aim was to publish 
in the Anfasa newsletter. Dr Shahieda Jansen 
was one of the authors whom I mentored early 
on when she wanted to convert her PhD into a 
book. But I think she also had a great practical 
process, which basically carried the content 
and the book context further. This interview 
explores the process.

In this interview with author Dr Shahieda 
Jansen about her book, Masculinity meets 
humanity: An adapted model of masculinised 
Psychotherapy, the author reveals her journey.

Hetta: Dr Shahieda, shall we return to the 
origin of this book? Your interest as a 

Copyright in all the articles in this 
magazine is held  by the individual 

authors. If you wish to reproduce any 
article, or any substantial part of any 

article, kindly contact ANFASA for 
permission.

An Interview with Dr Shahieda Jansen about her new 
Book: Masculinity Meets Humanity

DEDICATED TO EMPOWERING AUTHORS

Volume 8, Issue 1, 2024

https://www.anfasa.org.za

ACADEMIC  
AND  
NON-FICTION  
AUTHORS  
ASSOCIATION 
OF SOUTH AFRICA 
DEDICATED TO EMPOWERING AUTHORS

* Hetta Pieterse is Commissioning Editor & 
Manager at Unisa Press, and an ANFASA 
team member.

Hetta Pieterse*

Beyond the Book:
  

opening up new understanding within the practice 
of Psychology for men's groups in South Africa

Dr Shahieda Jansen, a Clinical 
Psychologist, with the author against 
the iconic environs of District Six and 
Table Mountain.
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EDITORIAL COLLECTIVE

Keyan G. Tomaselli (Co-Editor)
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Hetta Pieterse
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CONTRIBUTORS
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DESIGN, LAYOUT & 
PRODUCTION
Mike Maxwell  
mik_max2@hotmail.co.uk

“ It is important 
to note that 
this volume of 
interviews was 
curated during a 
time when a lot of 
books had already 
been published 
on Covid-19, 
pandemics and 
post-Covid.”

Contents

Critically Diverse Perspectives 
on Covid-19: Interviews with a 
varied range of South Africans 
Ompha Tshikhudo Malima ........1

TheCopyright Amendment Bill: 
An Appraisal of NewsCoverage 
Keyan Tomaselli ........................6

Navigating Niche Research: My 
Post-Doctoral Journey 
Emmanuel Rowlands ..............10

The opinions of the authors are 
their own and do not represent 

the views of ANFASA or the 
editorial team

continued on page 2:

Ompha:  Sayan, your 
book focuses on a 
multiplicity of lived 

experiences arising from 
the COVID-19 epidemic 
and yet the discussions are 
grounded on sustained research 
methodology. Is there a 
specific interviewee who most 
poignantly raised the aspect 
of weaponising pandemics 
through race relations? 

Sayan:  A great question to initiate the 
conversation. It is important to note that this 
volume of interviews was curated during 
a time when a lot of books had already been 
published on Covid-19, pandemics and post-
Covid. While conceptualizing this project we 
were concerned that a majority of the published 
works had focused on the disease, society, 
crises and solutions from deep theoretical 
viewpoints. While on the one hand, we do 
not deny the necessity of formulating theories 
to address challenges, it is also important to 
simultaneously engage with practicalities and 
that is where our project comes in. The aspect of 
sustained research methodology is to put forth 
the argument that the pandemic of Covid-19 

Copyright in all the articles in this 
magazine is held  by the individual 

authors. If you wish to reproduce any 
article, or any substantial part of any 

article, kindly contact ANFASA for 
permission.

An Interview with Sayan Dey about the book: Critically 
Diverse Perspectives on Covid-19

DEDICATED TO EMPOWERING AUTHORS

Volume 8, Issue 2, 2024
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Ompha Tshikhudo Malima*

Critically Diverse 
Perspectives on 

Covid-19:
Interviews with a varied range of South Africans

Dr Sayan Dey*

 * Ompha Tshikhudo Malima is an early 
career scholar, philosopher, and writer.
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“ For actors, the 
ever-widening 
scope of AI tools 
to replicate, 
adapt or mimic 
virtually any 
digital content, 
had begun 
to encroach 
directly upon 
their artistry”

Contents

Artificial Intelligence for 
Authors: A Sea of Tools, or 
Swimming with the Sharks?  
Hetta Pieterse ............................1

The new et al.: Risks for South 
Africa’s University Research 
Addamms Mututa ......................7

The Big Tech Agenda: Artificial 
Intelligence and Piracy 
Keyan Tomaselli ...................... 11

Whose Picture is it Anyway? 
Mike Maxwell ............................14

The opinions of the authors are 
their own and do not represent 

the views of ANFASA or the 
editorial team

continues on page 2:

THE praises of Artificial Intelligence 
(AI) have been sung as a productivity-
enhancing tool useful to many diverse 

industries. For authors, the AI software market 
continues to boom with new and improved 
releases of software jostling for position to 
improve and even to rewrite content. However, 
these days extreme caution is recommended for 
AI users on several fronts as the hype around 
the availability of new and changing AI tools is 
beginning to subside.

For actors, the ever-widening scope of AI 
tools to replicate, adapt or mimic virtually any 
digital content, had begun to encroach directly 

Copyright in all the articles in this 
magazine is held  by the individual 

authors. If you wish to reproduce any 
article, or any substantial part of any 

article, kindly contact ANFASA for 
permission.

Sounding a Note of Caution about the use of AI as an 
Editing and Rewriting Aid

Volume 8, Issue 3, 2024
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Hetta Pieterse*

Artificial Intelligence 
for authors: A sea of 
tools, or swimming 

with the sharks?

AI Image created by Mike Maxwell 
generated using Microsoft Designer

 * Hetta Pieterse is an Anfasa team 
member and Unisa Press Commissioning 
Editor & Manager hettapiet@gmail.com 

 Background: This introductory talk was 
delivered at an Anfasa Seminar in 2023.
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“ ... I attempt to 
delve deeper into 
a phenomenon 
that for at least 
a decade I have 
been calling ‘the 
grassroots books 
revolution’. 
Never mind 
the quality, feel 
the energy, the 
authenticity, 
the sense of 
ownership”

Contents
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David Robbins ............................1
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Paradise: A History of 
Dispossession and Slavery in 
Simon’s Town 
Leslie London ............................6
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Martin Challenor ......................10

Updated ANFASA Authors’ 
Bibliography 
Mike Maxwell ............................13

The opinions of the authors are 
their own and do not represent 

the views of ANFASA or the 
editorial team

continues on page 2:

Copyright in all the articles in this 
magazine is held  by the individual 

authors. If you wish to reproduce any 
article, or any substantial part of any 

article, kindly contact ANFASA for 
permission.

Workshopping the Grassroots Books Revolution
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David Robbins*

Never Mind the 
Quality, Feel the 
Width

 * David Robbins is an author, a regular 
ANFASA Magazine contributor and a 
publisher. He manages Cross Border 
Books among many of his other literary 
enterprises.  

This catchy slogan was 
the title of a television 
play, and later a multi-

part series, about a pair of 
wily drapers who kept British 
television audiences smiling 
during the late 1960s and early 
1970s. I never saw it, but the title keeps recurring 
as I attempt to delve deeper into a phenomenon 
that for at least a decade I have been calling 
‘the grassroots books revolution’. Never mind 
the quality, feel the energy, the authenticity, the 
sense of ownership.

This is contentious ground. How can we 
abandon the idea of ‘quality’, especially 
when dealing with such a serious subject as 
LITERATURE? By the same token, how can we 
ignore the emotional force and local relevance 
of grassroots writing merely because it often 
displays ignorance of syntax, tenses, spelling, 
and compositional structure? Isn’t that akin to 
throwing the baby out with the bathwater?

Surely, it’s too early to say that the baby isn’t 
worth keeping. Think of the fine arts controversies 

The ANFASA magazine has now reached its eighth volume, 
published four times annually.  Its authors cover a variety of 
topics on authorship, publishing, writing and research, AI, 
bookselling and stories by AGSA beneficiaries on their writing 
and publishing experiences. Most importantly, the articles 
intermesh grassroots initiatives with academic issues, thus 
integrating writers across the spectrum.  It is the only magazine 
that achieves this and, indeed, one of the authors interviewed 
is a homeless man whose biography is to be published by an 
academic press.  

Articles from the magazine have been republished in weekly 
national newspapers such as the Mail & Guardian, Daily 
Maverick, University World News, and in Book News Update 
and elsewhere.  Some articles are now also being cited by 
columnists in the news media and even in scholarly literature.  
The magazine is distributed more widely than the ANFASA 
membership and reaches into the academic sector also. 

We have included all four publications of the magazine. 

REPORT ON THE 
MAGAZINE
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ACADEMIC AND NON - FICTION AUTHORS' ASSOCIATION OF SOUTH AFRICA
(ANFASA)
(NPO REGISTRATION NUMBER:062-168-NPO)

MANAGEMENT BOARD'S RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

The management board is required by their Constitution, to maintain adequate accounting records and 
are responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and related financial information 
included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the state 
of affairs of the association as at the end of the financial period and the results of its operations and cash 
flows for the year then ended, in conformity with its accounting policies. The external auditors are engaged
to express an independent opinion on the financial statements.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with our accounting policies and are based upon
appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements 
and estimates.

The management board acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial
controls established by the association and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control
environment. To enable the management board to meet these responsibilities, the board sets out standards
for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost - effective manner. The standards
include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting
procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are
monitored throughout the association and employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards
in ensuring the association's business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is
above reproach. The focus of risk management in the organisation is on identifying, assessing, managing 
and monitoring all known forms of risk across the forum. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, 
the association endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems 
and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The management board are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by 
management, that the system of internal controls provides reasonable assurance that the financial records 
may be relied on for the presentation of the financial statements. However, any system of internal financial 
control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The management board have reviewed the association's cash flow forecast for the year to 31st March 2025
and, in the light of this review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the association 
has or has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

Although the management board are primarily responsible for the financial affairs of the association, it 
is supported by the association's external auditors.

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the association's 
financial statements. The financial statements have been examined by the association's external 
auditors and their report is presented on pages 2 to 4.

The annual financial statements set out on pages 5 to 17, were approved by the management board on 
the                               and were signed on its behalf by:
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ACADEMIC AND NON - FICTION AUTHORS' ASSOCIATION OF SOUTH AFRICA
(ANFASA)
(NPO REGISTRATION NUMBER:062-168-NPO)

REPORT OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Your Management Board present their report, together with the audited financial statements of the 
association for for the year ended 31 March 2025.

General

The Association shall be an association (universitas) established under the South African common
law, a corporate body existing in its own right, separately from its members and continuing to exist
even when its membership changes and there are different office bearers. The Association is
registered in terms of the Non-Profit Organisations Act, No 71 of 1997.

ANFASA's mission is:-

 - To promote the recognition and fair remuneration of authors, and respect for their rights;

 - To facilitate the creation, publication and dissemination of quality works by both published and
aspiring authors;

 - To make and maintain links with and encourage cooperation between authors and others in the 
book value chain.

ANFASA's objectives are :-

 - To promote and protect the intellectual property rights of its members and of all academic and 
non-fiction authors in South Africa, and to inform authors about their rights.

 - To promote sound professional and legal relationships between authors and publishers and to 
assist authors in negotiating fair publishing contracts.

 - To offer advice and assistance to authors of academic and non-fiction works.

 - To encourage the personal development of aspiring and emerging academic and non-fiction authors
and to offer guidance in all aspects of such writing.

 - To provide a forum for debating issues of interest to academic and non-fiction authors and to provide
support and solidarity in interacting with other writers, in South Africa and abroad.

 - To facilitate interaction, exchange and collaboration between writers across the different media and 
with artists in other disciplines.

 - To liaise and cooperate with local, national, regional and international bodies involved in the funding,
promotion, distribution and development of writing.

 - To promote members' publications, both nationally and internationally.

 - To promote and protect freedom of expression.
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ACADEMIC AND NON - FICTION AUTHORS' ASSOCIATION OF SOUTH AFRICA
(ANFASA)
(NPO REGISTRATION NUMBER:062-168-NPO)

REPORT OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025 (Continued)

Results for the period

The results of operations for the year are fully disclosed in the attached financial statements.

GOING CONCERN

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable 
to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds are available to finance future operations and 
that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments
will continue to occur in the ordinary course of business.

The ability of the association to continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors, 
the most significant of which is that the board and management will continue to obtain sufficient 
funding for its ongoing operations while maintaining appropriate control over its costs.

The board believe that the association has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for 
the foreseeable future and accordingly the annual financial statements have been prepared on a 
going concern basis. The board have satisfied themselves that the organisation is in a sound 
financial position and that it has raised sufficient funds to meet its foreseeable cash requirements. 
The board are not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the organisation

Equipment

During the year under review, the association acquired equipment costing Rnil (2024 : R25,542).

Post financial position events

No material fact or circumstance has occurred in the conduct of the association's activities
between the statement of financial position date and the date of this report.

Members of the Board

The following served as members during the year under review :-

Prof SE Ngubane - Chairman
W Mohapi - Interim Treasurer
S Khumalo
E Le Roux
K Tomaselli

Auditors

Douglas & Velcich were retained as auditors during the year under review.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS

ACADEMIC AND NON - FICTION AUTHORS' ASSOCIATION 
OF SOUTH AFRICA 
(ANFASA)

Qualified Opinion
We have audited the annual financial statements of Academic and Non - Fiction Authors' Association
of South Africa (ANFASA) set out on pages 7 to 18, which comprise the statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in reserves and
statement of cash flows for the financial year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph,
the financial statements fairly present, in all material respects, the financial position of the Academic and
Non - Fiction Authors' Association of South Africa (ANFASA) as at 31 March 2025, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with its accounting policies.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
In common with similar organisations, it is not feasible for the association to institute accounting controls
over collections of membership fees, prior to the initial entry of the collections in the accounting records.
Accordingly, it was impracticable for us to extend our examination beyond the receipts actually recorded.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Association in accordance with the
Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors
(IRBA Code), together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of financial statements in
South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical requirements in accordance with these requirements and the
IRBA Code. The IRBA Code is consistent with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Part A and B). We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information
The management board is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Report of the Management Board set out on pages 5 to 6. The other information does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Emphasis of matter
We draw attention to the matter below. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

As is explained in note 11 to the financial statements, the association needs ongoing donor support if it is 
to continue operations. These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting practices
applicable to a going concern which assumes that the association will generate sufficient funds by way of
grants from donors to continue funding its activities in the ensuing year. Accordingly they do not include any
adjustments, relating to the recoverability and classification of assets or to the amounts and classification
of liabilities, that would be necessary if the association were unable to continue as a going concern.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged With Governance for the 
Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with their accounting policies and the requirements of the Constitution, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements, 
management is responsible for assessing the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Association or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Association’s 
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 - identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

 - obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Association’s internal control

 - evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management

 - conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Association to cease to continue as a going concern
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 - evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures,  and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation

 - obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the association to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the association audit. We remain solely responsible for 
our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit. We have communicated with those charged with governance on all 
relationships and other matters, which may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where 
applicable, related safeguards.

Rev Vincent Bhengu CA (SA), RA (IRBA 507361)
Douglas & Velcich
Chartered Accountants (S.A.)

Johannesburg
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ACADEMIC AND NON - FICTION AUTHORS' ASSOCIATION 
OF SOUTH AFRICA 
(ANFASA)
(NPO REGISTRATION NUMBER:062-168-NPO)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2025

2025 2024
Note R R

ASSETS 787 900                 395 959                 

Non-current assets 9 681                     23 754                   

Equipment 2 9 681                     23 754                   

Current assets 778 219                 372 205                 

Account receivable 3 47 822                   81 864                   
Cash and cash equivalents 4 730 397                 290 341                 

Total assets 787 900                 395 959                 

RESERVES AND LIABILITIES 787 900                 395 959                 

Reserves 782 300                 395 959                 

Accumulated funds 782 300                 395 959                 

Current liabilities 5 600                     -                             

Accounts payable 5 5 600                     -                             

Total reserves and liabilities 787 900                 395 959                 
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ACADEMIC AND NON - FICTION AUTHORS' ASSOCIATION 
OF SOUTH AFRICA 
(ANFASA)
(NPO REGISTRATION NUMBER:062-168-NPO)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

2025 2024
R R

INCOME Note 6 173 683            5 329 007            

Grants received 6 5 949 395            5 138 062            
Membership fees 23 235                 15 510                 
Interest received 7 167 095               168 077               
Dividends received 32 996                 -                           
Sundry income 962                      7 358                   

EXPENDITURE 5 787 342            5 349 395            

Board meeting expenses 42 052                 50 700                 
DSAC Publishing Hub 4 752 443            4 379 082            
Office expenses 978 087               773 484               

Accounting and auditing services 4 458                   36 842                 
Publicity materials and communication 139 450               105 848               
Bank charges 3 737                   4 830                   
Depreciation 2 14 073                 14 012                 
Interest and penalties 7 636                      6 227                   
Membership fees 5 360                   11 667                 
Misc office expenses 43 794                 28 347                 
Rent and phone costs 38 768                 50 786                 
Salaries, wages and contributions 506 141               455 094               
Travel 65 188                 33 611                 
VAT irrecoverable 70 785                 -                           
Website development and maintenance 85 700                 26 221                 

Power of Authors -                           50 200                 
Project management fee 14 760                 95 231                 
Workshops and seminars -                           699                      

SURPLUS /(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR                386 341                 (20 388)
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ACADEMIC AND NON - FICTION AUTHORS' ASSOCIATION 
OF SOUTH AFRICA 
(ANFASA)
(NPO REGISTRATION NUMBER:062-168-NPO)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Accumulated
funds Total

 R  R

Balance at 31 March 2023 416 347                 416 347                 

(Deficit) for the year (20 388)                  (20 388)                  

Balance at 31 March 2024 395 959                 395 959                 

Surplus for the year 386 341                 386 341                 

Balance at 31 March 2025 782 300                 782 300                 
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ACADEMIC AND NON - FICTION AUTHORS' ASSOCIATION 
OF SOUTH AFRICA 
(ANFASA)
(NPO REGISTRATION NUMBER:062-168-NPO)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

2024 2023
Note R R

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from donors and members 6 006 588              5 427 480            
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (5 733 627)             (5 433 200)           

Cash generated/(utilised in) operations 8 272 960                 (5 720)                  

Interest received 167 095                 168 077               

Net cash inflow  from operating activities 440 056                 162 357               

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES -                             (25 542)                

Acquisition of equipment, at cost -                             (25 542)                

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES -                         -                       

Net increase  in cash and cash equivalents 440 056                 136 816               

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 290 341                 153 525               

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4 730 397                 290 341               
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ACADEMIC AND NON - FICTION AUTHORS' ASSOCIATION 
OF SOUTH AFRICA 
(ANFASA)
(NPO REGISTRATION NUMBER:062-168-NPO)

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the association's accounting
policies. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for 
financial instruments and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below.

1.2 SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts represented in the financial statements and related 
disclosures. Use of available information and the application of judgement is inherent in the 
formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which
may be material to the financial statements.

1.3 EQUIPMENT

The cost of an item of tangible assets is recognised as an asset when:

- it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the association; and

- the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of tangible assets and costs
incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised 
in the carrying amount of an item of tangible assets, the carrying amount of the replaced part is 
derecognised.

Tangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible assets other than freehold land, to write down the cost,
less residual value, by equal instalments over their useful lives as follows :- 

Item Useful life

Computer equipment 3 years
Furniture and fittings 6 years
Office equipment 5 years

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss, unless it is included in
the carrying amount of another asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognising of an item of equipment is included in profit or
loss when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognising of an item of  
equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the
carrying amount of the item.
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ACADEMIC AND NON - FICTION AUTHORS' ASSOCIATION 
OF SOUTH AFRICA 
(ANFASA)
(NPO REGISTRATION NUMBER:062-168-NPO)

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025 (Continued)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1.4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Measurement

Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet include bank balances, accounts 
receivable and accounts payable. Financial instruments are initially measured at cost as at
trade date, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the following
instruments are measured as set out below :-

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable originated by the association is treated as loans and receivables, and
is carried at amortised cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk in change in value.
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at fair value.

Accounts payable

Accounts payable which are short - term obligation, are stated at their nominal value.

1.5 IMPAIRMENT

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at statement of financial position date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If there is such indication,
the assets are written down to the estimated recoverable amounts. The recoverable
amount is the higher of the net selling price and the value in use.

1.6 INCOME RECOGNITION

Income from grants is generally brought to account in the financial period to which it relates.

All other income is brought to account as and when received.

1.7 INTEREST INCOME

Interest is brought to account as and when received.

1.8 EXPENDITURE

Expenditure is accounted for on the accrual basis.
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ACADEMIC AND NON - FICTION AUTHORS' ASSOCIATION 
OF SOUTH AFRICA 
(ANFASA)
(NPO REGISTRATION NUMBER:062-168-NPO)

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025 (Continued)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1.9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service
is rendered, such as paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary
benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered
and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the
employee renders service that increases their entitlement or, in the case of non-
accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a
legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.



Pa
ge

 1
4

AC
AD

EM
IC

 A
N

D
 N

O
N

 - 
FI

C
TI

O
N 

AU
TH

O
R

S'
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TI
O

N
 

O
F 

SO
U

TH
 A

FR
IC

A 
(A

N
FA

SA
)

(N
PO

 R
EG

IS
TR

AT
IO

N
 N

U
M

B
ER

:0
62

-1
68

-N
PO

)

N
O

TE
S 

TO
 T

H
E 

AN
N

UA
L 

FI
N

AN
C

IA
L 

ST
AT

EM
EN

TS
 F

O
R

TH
E 

YE
AR

 E
N

D
ED

 3
1 

M
AR

C
H

 2
02

5 
(C

on
tin

ue
d)

2.
EQ

UI
PM

EN
T 

C
om

pu
te

r
Fu

rn
itu

re
 

O
ffi

ce
Eq

ui
pm

en
t

&
 fi

tti
ng

s
eq

ui
pm

en
t

To
ta

l
R

R
R

R
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
5

N
et

 b
oo

k 
va

lu
e 

1 
Ap

ril
 2

02
3

23
 7

52
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

23
 7

54
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

At
 c

os
t

71
 1

19
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
 2

54
,0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
 9

60
,0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
6 

33
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Ac
cu

m
ul

at
ed

 d
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
(4

7 
36

7)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(3

0 
25

3,
00

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(2
4 

95
9,

00
)

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1

02
 5

79
)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Ad
di

tio
ns

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

D
is

po
sa

l o
f a

ss
et

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
C

os
t

(2
5 

57
8)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(3
0 

25
4)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(2
4 

96
0)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(8
0 

79
2)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Ac
cu

m
ul

at
ed

 d
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
25

 5
78

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

 2
54

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

 9
60

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
80

 7
92

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r

(1
4 

07
1)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(1
)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(1

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(1
4 

07
3)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

N
et

 b
oo

k 
va

lu
e 

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
02

4
9 

68
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
9 

68
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
At

 c
os

t
45

 5
41

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
45

 5
41

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Ac

cu
m

ul
at

ed
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n

(3
5 

85
9)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(3
5 

85
9)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
02

4

N
et

 b
oo

k 
va

lu
e 

1 
Ap

ril
 2

02
3

12
 2

22
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
 2

24
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

At
 c

os
t

45
 5

77
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
 2

54
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
 9

60
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
0 

79
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Ac
cu

m
ul

at
ed

 d
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
(3

3 
35

5)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(3

0 
25

3)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(2

4 
95

9)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(8

8 
56

7)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Ad

di
tio

ns
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
25

 5
42

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

 5
42

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r

(1
4 

01
2)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(1
4 

01
2)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

N
et

 b
oo

k 
va

lu
e 

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
02

4
23

 7
52

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
23

 7
54

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
At

 c
os

t
71

 1
19

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

 2
54

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

 9
60

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

6 
33

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Ac

cu
m

ul
at

ed
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n

(4
7 

36
7)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(3
0 

25
3)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(2
4 

95
9)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(1
02

 5
79

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 



           Page 15
ACADEMIC AND NON - FICTION AUTHORS' ASSOCIATION 
OF SOUTH AFRICA 
(ANFASA)
(NPO REGISTRATION NUMBER:062-168-NPO)

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025 (Continued)

2025 2024
R R

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

VAT receivable 47 822                       81 864                       

47 822                       81 864                       

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Current account 22 376                       86 145                       
Investment accounts 707 577                     203 752                     
Petty cash 444                            444                            

730 397                     290 341                     

5. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Sundry payables 5 600                         -                             
5 600                         -                             

6. GRANTS RECEIVED

Department of Sport, Arts and Culture
     South Africa -New Voices 500 000                     50 000                       

Received 500 000                     50 000                       
Department of Sport, Arts and Culture 
     South Africa -Publishing Hub 5 000 000                  4 500 000                  

Received 5 000 000                  4 500 000                  
National Arts Council 30 000                       70 000                       

Received 30 000                       70 000                       
Norwegian Non-Fiction Writers and 
       Translators Association 419 395                     518 062                     

Received 419 395                     784 612                     
Accrued in 2023 -                             (266 550)                    

5 949 395                  5 138 062                  
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ACADEMIC AND NON - FICTION AUTHORS' ASSOCIATION 
OF SOUTH AFRICA 
(ANFASA)
(NPO REGISTRATION NUMBER:062-168-NPO)

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025 (Continued)

2025 2024
R R

7. NET INTEREST RECEIVED

Interest received 167 095                     168 077                     

Interest received 167 095                     168 077                     

Interest paid (636)                          (6 227)                       

Interest paid - SARS - PAYE (636)                          (6 227)                       

166 460                     161 850                     

8. CASH (UTILISED IN) OPERATIONS

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 386 341                     (20 388)                     

Adjustments for :

Depreciation 14 073                       14 012                       
Interest received (167 095)                   (168 077)                   
Decrease in accrued income -                            266 550                     

Changes in working capital 39 642                       (97 816)                     
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable 34 042                       (26 033)                     
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable 5 600                         (71 783)                     

272 960                     (5 720)                       

9. TAXATION

No provision has been made for taxation as the association has qualified for exemption
from income tax under section s10(1)(d)(iv)(bb) of the Income Tax Act 58 of 1962.
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ACADEMIC AND NON - FICTION AUTHORS' ASSOCIATION 
OF SOUTH AFRICA 
(ANFASA)
(NPO REGISTRATION NUMBER:062-168-NPO)

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025 (Continued)

10. GOING CONCERN

The existence of the association is dependent on the association controlling expenditure and 
on the continued support of its funders. Should the funders cease funding its future activities, 
it is highly unlikely that the association will be able to continue as a going concern.

These annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting practices
applicable to a going concern which assumes that the association will generate sufficient 
funds by way of grants from donors to continue funding its activities in the ensuing year. 
Accordingly they do not include any adjustment, relating to the recoverability and 
classification of assets or to the amounts and classification of liabilities, that would be 
necessary if the association were unable to continue as a going concern.

11. FINANCIAL RISKS

11.1 Currency risk

The association is exposed to currency risk to the extent that the grants are received
by the association in foreign currency.

11.2 Interest rate risk

The association is exposed to interest rate risk, as it places funds at both fixed and
floating interest rates. The risk is managed by maintaining an appropriate mix between
fixed and floating rates and placing within market expectations.

11.3 Credit risk

The association's credit risk is attributable to liquid funds. The credit risk on liquid funds
is limited because the counter party is a bank with credit rating assigned by international
credit -rating agencies. The association has no significant concentration of credit risk.

11.4 Liquidity risk

The association manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows and ensuring
that adequate cash reserves are maintained.








